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UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Statement of corporate governance
For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Board of Directors of UBA Kenya Bank Limited (the “Bank”) is committed to
implementing the highest standards of corporate governance. In doing this, the Bank has
adopted corporate governance policies and practices that meet or exceed applicable legal
and regulatory requirements.

Board of Directors

The Bank is managed under the direction of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), which is
responsible for providing strategic direction and effective oversight of management and
maximization of the Bank's financial performance and shareholder value within the
framework of appropriate risk management.

The Board has set a structure and standards to ensure that the directors are independent.
The Chairman’s responsibility is to lead and manage the work of the Board and to ensure
that it operates effectively and fully discharges its legal and regulatory role. Non-executive
directors, based on their breadth of knowledge and experience, challenge, monitor and
approve the strategies and policies recommended by the Managing Director. The Board
meets regularly. During the past financial year, the Board held four meetings. Matters
requiring urgent attention are resolved through Circular resolutions.

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees to assist in the discharge of its
responsibilities. The committees operate within and in accordance with clearly set terms of
reference. These committees, their composition and responsibilities are as follows:

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Board Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises of the following Directors:

S/N | Name of Director Number of Number of % Attendance
Meetings Held Meetings
Attended
1 Alphan Njeru 4 4 100%
2 Olive Mugenda 4 4 100%
3 Ebele Ogbue ' 4 4 100%
| 4 | Susan Omanga 4 4 100% |

The committee comprises of four non-executive directors. The committee meets quarterly
and it has two roles as a Board Audit Committee and as Board Risk Management
Committee. As a Board Audit Committee, it is charged with reviewing the financial condition
of the Bank, its internal control systems, and recommend appropriate remedial action. The
committee receives reports from both external and internal auditors; it monitors the
implementation of audit recommendations and deliberates on the significant findings arising
from inspections by the bank supervision department of the Central Bank of Kenya.

As a Board Risk Management Committee, its role is to ensure quality, integrity and reliability
of the Bank's risk management. This is achieved through monitoring, reviewing and
assessing the integrity and adequacy of the overall risk management framework and setting
the Bank's appetite and tolerance for risk and approving risk limits within acceptable
tolerance for risk, considering and approving all risk management policies and frameworks
and monitoring compliance risk.



UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Statement of corporate governance
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Board Credit Committee

The Board Credit Committee comprises of the following Directors:

' SIN | Name of Director Number of Number of % Attendance
Meetings Meetings
Held Attended
1 Kenneth Oriji 4 4 100%
2 QOliver Alawuba 4 4 100%
3 Ebele Ogbue 4 4 100%
4 | Alphan Njeru [ 4 4 100%

The committee is composed of four non-executive directors and the executive director. The
committee meets on a quarterly basis. The role of the commitiee is to oversee the lending
policy of the Bank. It also appraises and approves credit applications within the limits set by
the Board and reviews the quality of the loans portfolio ensuring that adequate provisions
are held in line with CBK Prudential Guidelines.

Finance & Governance Committee

The Finance & Governance Committee comprises of the following Directors:

S/N | Name of Director Number of Number of %Attendance }
Meetings Meetings
Held Attended
1 Oliver Alawuba 4 4 100%
2 | Olive Mugenda 4 4 100%
3 | Susan Omanga 4 4 100%
4 Kenneth Orji | 4 | 4 100%

The committee comprises four non-executive directors and the executive director and meets
on a quarterly basis. The role of the committee is to recommend strategic initiatives to the
Board, review the budget and the audited accounts and the compensation policy.

Board Evaluation

In the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Board undertook a formal evaluation of
its performance and that of its committees and individual directors. This performance
evaluation is an annual exercise aimed at ensuring that the Board remains efficient and
effective while discharging its responsibilities. Overall, the results of the evaluation were
positive and indicated that the Board and committees were effective and that no major
changes were required. The report was submitted to CBK as required by the CBK
Prudential Guidelines.




UBA Kenya Bank Limited

Statement of corporate governance
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Board Meetings

The Board held 4 meetings in the year. The meetings were heid in an atmosphere of
intellectual honesty of purpose, integrity and mutual respect, requiring reporting of the
highest standard by management and direct, robust and constructive challenge and debate
among Board and committee members.

| Director Executive/ Meetings % Date | Date
Non- attended | attendan joined exited
_ executive ce
1| James Olubayi Non-executive 4 100 29 Mar 2010 | 30 Dec
2020
2| Olive Mugenda Non-executive 4 100 24 Mar 2016 | N/A
3| Oliver Alawuba Non-executive 4 100 17 Jun 2016 | N/A
4| Alphan Njeru Non-executive 4 100 19 Dec 2016 | N/A
5| Ebele Ogbue Non-executive 4 100 9 Feb 2017 | N/A
6| Susan Omanga Non-executive 4 100 3 May 2017 | N/A
7| Kenneth Oriji Non-executive 4 100 18 Sep 2018 | N/A

Management Committees

The Managing Director has also set up various committees made up of senior officers of the
Bank entrusted with different responsibilities, which operate within prescribed Terms of
Reference as approved by the Board. These committees include the Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALCO), Executive Credit Committee, Executive Management Committee and
the Risk Management Committee.



UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements of UBA
Kenya Bank Limited (the “Bank”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is engaged in the business of banking and the provision of related services.

DIVIDEND

The net profit for the year of Shs 39,494,000 (2019: of Shs 43,082,000) has been deducted
from accumulated losses. The directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the

year (2019: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Interest income increased marginally to Shs 1,543 million (2019: Shs 1,524 million -
Restated) largely driven by decreased drawdowns and paydown of loans & advances. This
could also be attributed to reduced yield rate of NGN treasury bills reinvested in the year.
Interest expense increased by 8% to Shs 860 million (2019: Shs 799 million) driven by
interest charged on overdrawn Nostro accounts and CBK reverse Repo. Consequently, the
net impact was a dip in net interest income by 6% to (Shs 682 million (2019: 725 million).

Net trading income increased greatly by 129% to Shs 315 million (2019: Shs 138 million) as
a result of increased FX sales volumes and arbitrage opportunities.

Operating expenses increased by 2% in 2020 to Shs 638 million (2019: Shs 628 million) the
relatively small increase reflect a tight control on cost.

Management is optimistic about the future and have put in place the necessary strategies to
take advantage of emerging opportunities in the market.

Key performance metrics

The table below highlights some of the key performance indicators:

2019

Key Performance Indicators 2020 | Restated
Profit before income tax (Shs ‘000) 55,972 81,072
Customer Deposits (Shs ‘000) 7,771,759 6’932’92
Net interest income (Shs ‘000) 682,866 724,939

| Net Operating income (Shs ‘000) 694,162 709,086
Loan to Deposit Ratio 34% 52%
Cost to Income 66% 73%

| Liquidity Ratio 85.50% 75.8%

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are shown on
page 2.



UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 -December 2020

AUDITORS

The directors confirm that with respect to each director at the time of approval of this report:

(a) there is, as far as each director is aware, no relevant audit information of which the
company’s auditors are unaware; and

(b) each director had taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a director, so as to
be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are
aware of that information.

TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP continue in office in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association and Section 719 of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015.

The directors monitor the effectiveness, objectivity and independence of the auditor. The
directors also approve the, annual audit engagement contract which sets out the terms of the
auditor's appointment and the related fees. ..

By order of the Board -

Company Secretary

£ March 2021



UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank at the
end of the financial year and of its profit or loss for that year. The directors are responsible
for ensuring that the Bank keeps proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the transactions of the Bank;. disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Bank; and that:enables them to prepare financial statements of the
Bank that comply with prescribed financial reporting standards and the requirements of the
Kenyan Companies Act 2015. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Bank and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.

The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the
manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act 2015. They also accept responsibility for;

i. Designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as they determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error;

i. Selecting suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; and

iii. Making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Having made an assessment of the ability of the Bank to continue as a going concern, the
directors are not aware of any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may
cast -doubt upon the use of going concern basis for preparation of these financial

statements.

The directors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statements does not
relieve them of their responsibility.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Kehinde Lateef Omirinde Alphan Nje\rlj
Ag. CEO Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UBA KENYA
BANK LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of UBA Kenya Bank Limited (the
“Bank”) set out on pages 12 to 61 which comprise the statement of financial position at 31
December 2020, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Bank at 31 December 2020 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act 2015.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Kenya. We
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other informatiors. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed
on the other information, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. PwC Tower, Waiyaki Way/Chiromo Road, Westlands
P O Box 43963 — 00100 Nairobi, Kenya
T: +254 (20)285 5000 F: +254 (20)285 5001 www.pwe.com/ke

Partners: E Kerich B Kimacia M Mugasa A Murage F Muriu P Ngahu R Njoroge S O Norbert’s B Okundi K Saiti
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UBA KENYA
BANK LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disciosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UBA KENYA
BANK LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other matters prescribed by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015

In our opinion the information given in the report of the directors on pages 6 to 7 is
consistent with the financial statements.

?M\(QAAC«LTON M%CDDW S
Certified Public Accountants

Nairobi 31 March 2021

CPA Bernice Kimacia , Practicising Certificate No. 1457
Signing partner responsible for the independent audit

11






UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Restated
Note 2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
Interest income 5 1,543,023 1,524,191
Interest expense 6 (860,157) (799,252)
Net interest income 682,866 724,939
Fees and commission income 7 52,172 52,896
Fees and commission expense 7 (56,580) (37,800)
Net fees and commission (expenses)/
income (4,408) 15,096
Net trading and revaluation income 8 314,826 137,667
Credit impairment losses 10 (298,830) (171,056)
Other operating income 9 11,994 2,440
Net trading and other income 27,990 (30,949)
Net operating income 706,448 709,086
Employee benefit expenses 11 (331,311) (358,731)
Depreciation and amortisation 12 (30,126) (35,477)
Depreciation of lease asset (30,722) (30,722)
Finance cost (4,141) (6,847)
Other operating expenses 13 (254,176) (196,237)
Profit before income tax 55,972 81,072
Income tax expense 14 (16,478) (37,990)
Profit for the year 39,494 43,082

12



UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Statement of financial position

Restated
Notes 2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
Assets
Cash and balances with the Central
Bank of Kenya 15 705,811 411,580
Deposits and balances due from
banking institutions 17 3,341,549 3,325,204
Loans and advances to customers 18 2,615,732 3,629,616
Government securities at amortised
cost 19 10,580,940 7,909,337
Property and equipment 20 61,238 78,298
Intangible assets 21 2,857 4,829
Right-of-use assets 22 24,554 55,276
Deferred income tax 24 297,521 313,998
Other assets 23 1,112,972 335,674
Total assets 18,743,174 16,063,812
Liabilities
Deposits and balances due to banking
institutions 25 8,132,418 6,666,764
Deposits from customers 26 7,771,759 6,932,933
Lease Liability 27 26,583 57,442
Other liabilities 28 555,621 189,374
Total liabilities 16,486,381 13,846,513
Capital and reserves
Share capital 29 1,261,713 1,261,713
Share premium 29 2,384,754 2,384,754
Accumulated losses (1,389,674) (1,429,168)
Total equity 2,256,793 2,217,299
Total equity and liabilities 18,743,174 16,063,812

s

The financial statements on pages 12 to 81 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on

March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:
%{‘S

Kehinde Lateef Omirinde Alpha}l‘m!u
Director Director

13
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UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
Right-of-use assets

Net cashflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of principal portion of the lease
Interest paid on borrowings

Net cashflow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

15

2020 2019

Notes Shs’000 Shs’000
32 361,612 407,344
20 (12,436) (17,185)
1,510 1,345

- 37,569

(10,926) 21,729

{(30,859) (28,556)

(43,281) -

(74,140) (28,556)

276,546 400,517

3,566,095 3,165,578

16 3,842,641 3,566,095




UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes - Continued

1

General information

UBA Bank Kenya Limited (the “Bank”) is a limited liability company and is incorporated and
domiciled in Kenya. The address of its registered office is:

UBA Kenya Bank Limited
1st Floor, Apollo Centre
Ring Road, Westlands
PO Box 34154 - 00100
Nairobi

Summary of Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by International Accounting Standards Board.

(a) Basis of measurement

The measurement basis applied is the historical cost basis, except where otherwise stated in
the accounting policies below.

For those assets and liabilities measured at fair value, fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the company uses market observable data as far as possible. If the fair value of an asset or a
liability is not directly observable, it is estimated by the Bank using valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs
(e.g. by use of the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for
similar items or discounted cash flow analysis). Inputs used are consistent with the
characteristics of the asset / liability that market participants would take into account.

Fair values are categorised into three levels of fair value hierarchy based on the degree to
which the inputs to the measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety:

Level 1 — fair value measurements are derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — fair value measurements are derived from inputs other than quoted prices used in
Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - fair values measurements are derived from valuation techniques that include inputs
for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised by the Bank at the end of
the reporting period during which the change occurred.

16



UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes - Continued

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise judgement in the process of
applying the Bank’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact
on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed. The areas involving a higher

degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statement are disclosed in Note 3.

(c) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(i)  New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Bank

The foliowing standards and interpretations have been applied by the Company for the first time for
the financial reporting year commencing on or after 1 January 2020;

Number | Effective date | Executive summary

Amendment to IAS1, | Annual periods These amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 and
‘Presentation of beginning on or after | consequential amendments to other IFRSs:
financial statements’ 1 January 2020 ] o o
and IAS 8, ‘Accounting » use a consistent definition of materiality

through IFRSs and the Conceptual

policies, changes in (Published October ) - .
accounting estimates 2018) Framework for Financial Reporting;

and errors’ on the o clarify the explanation of the definition of
definition of material. material; and

e incorporate some of the guidance in IAS
1 about immaterial information.

The amended definition is:

“Information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting
entity.”

17



UBA Kenya Bank Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes - Continued

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(il New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Bank

Number

Effective date

Executive summary

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’
COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions
Amendment

Annual periods
beginning on or after
1 June 2020

(early adoption is
permitted)

(published June
2020)

The IASB has provided lessees (but not
lessors) with relief in the form of an optional
exemption from assessing whether a rent
concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification, provided that the concession
meets certain conditions. Lessees can elect
to account for qualifying rent concessions in
the same way as they would if they were
not lease modifications. In many cases, this
will result in accounting for the concession
as a variable lease payment.

Amendments to
IFRS 9 ‘Financial

| Instruments’, 1AS
39 ‘Financial
Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement’,
IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments:
Disclosures’, IFRS
4 ‘Insurance
Contracts’ and
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ —
interest rate
benchmark (IBOR)
reform (Phase 2)

Annual periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2021

(Published August
2020)

The Phase 2 amendments address issues
that arise from the implementation of the
reform of an interest rate benchmark,
including the replacement of one
benchmark with an alternative one.

Amendment to IAS
1 ‘Presentation of
Financial
Statements’ on
Classification of
Liabilities as
Current or Non-
current

Annual periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2022

(Published January
2020)

The amendment clarifies that liabilities are
classified as either current or non-current,
depending on the rights that exist at the end
of the reporting period. Classification is
unaffected by expectations of the entity or
events after the reporting date (for example,
the receipt of a waiver or a breach of
covenant).

18




UBA Kenya Bank Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes - Continued

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(i)  New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Bank (continued)

| Number

Effective date

| Executive summary

Amendments to
IAS 16 ‘Property,
Plant and
Equipment’ on
Proceeds before
Intended Use

Annual periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2022

(Published May
2020)

The amendment to IAS 16 prohibits an
entity from deducting from the cost of an
item of PPE any proceeds received from
selling items produced while the entity is
preparing the asset for its intended use (for
example, the proceeds from selling samples
produced when testing a machine to see if it
is functioning properly). The proceeds from
selling such items, together with the costs of
producing them, are recognised in profit or
loss.

Amendments to
IAS 37 ‘Provisions,
Contingent
Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’
on Onerous
Contracts—Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract

Annual periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2022

(Published May
2020)

The amendment clarifies which costs an
entity includes in assessing whether a
contract will be loss-making. This
assessment is made by considering
unavoidable costs, which are the lower of
the net cost of exiting the contract and the
costs to fulfil the contract. The amendment
clarifies the meaning of ‘costs to fulfil a
contract’. Under the amendment, costs to
fulfil a contract include incremental costs
and the allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling the contract.

Annual

2018 -2020

improvements cycle

| Annual periods

beginning on or after
1 January 2022

(Published May
2020)

e |IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’
has been amended to include
only those costs or fees paid
between the borrower and the
lender in the calculation of “the
10% test” for derecognition of a
financial liability. Fees paid to
third parties are excluded from
this calculation.

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, amendment to the
lllustrative Example 13 that accompanies
IFRS 18 to remove the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to
leasehold improvements. The amendment
intends to remove any potential confusion
about the treatment of lease incentives.

The Directors do not plan to apply the above standards, until they become effective.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on near future transactions.

19



UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes - Continued
2.2 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the Bank’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “Functional Currency”).

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Shs), which is the Bank’s presentation
currency. The figures shown in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest thousand.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the Functional Currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated with the closing rate as at the
reporting date. If several exchange rates are available, the forward rate is used at which the future
cash flows represented by the transaction or balance could have been settled if those cash flows
had occurred. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are translated with the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition; non-monetary items in a
foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated

in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as at fair
value are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.3 Financial instruments

2.3.1 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods

Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset of financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and, for financial assets,

adjusted for any loss allowances.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses and
includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees paid or received that are integral to
the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets — assets that are credit-impaired at initial recognition, the Bank calculates the
credit adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on the amortised cost of the
financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit
losses in estimated future cash flows.
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2.3 Financial instruments (continued)
2.3.1 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Measurement methods (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (continued)

When the Bank revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective
financial asset or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the
original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in the profit or loss account.

Interest income

Interest income and interest expense on interest bearing financial instruments is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount, except for:

Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets, for which the original credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the financial asset; and

Financial assets that are not “POCI” but have subsequently become credit-impaired, for which
interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost (i.e.net of
the expected credit loss provision) in subsequent reporting periods.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or
minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through the profit or loss,
transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial liability, such fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets
and financial liabilities are carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
Immediately after the initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for the
financial assets measured at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly

originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial
recognition, the entity recognises the difference as follows:

a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability (i.e. Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.

b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day one
profit or loss is determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument, deferred
until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using market observable inputs, or realised

through settlement.
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2.3 Financial instruments (continued)
2.3.1 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets
)] Classification and subsequent measurement
The Bank classifies its financial assets as Amortised cost

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's
perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables purchased from clients in
factoring arrangements without recourse. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

(i) the Bank’s business model for managing the asset; and

(ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset

Based on these factors, the Bank classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measurement
categories:

- Amortised cost: assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets are adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance.
Interest income from financial assets is included in “interest and similar income” using the effective interest rate

method.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on instrument’'s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in “Net investment
income” using the effective interest rate method. - Fair value through the profit or loss: Assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented within “Net trading income” in the period in
which it arises, unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held
for trading, in which case they are presented separately in “Net investment income”.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Bank manages the assets in order to generate cash
flows. That is, whether the Bank’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is
to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from sale of assets. If neither of these is
applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part
of “other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business
model for a Bank of assets include past experience on how cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset’'s performance is evaluated and reported by key management personnel, how risks are assessed
and managed and how managers are compensated. For example, the liquidity portfolio of assets is held by the
Bank as part of liquidity management and is generally classified with the hold to collect and sell business
model. Securities held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking. These securities are classified in the “other” business model and measured

at FVPL.
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2.3 Financial instruments (continued)
2.3.1 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
i) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual
cash flows and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represents solely
payments of principal and interest (the “SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Bank considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes
only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic
lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair

value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether

their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The Bank reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the
change. The changes are expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the year.

iy Impairment

The Bank assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses ("ECL") associated with its debt
instrument assets carried at amortised cost and with the exposure arising from loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts. The Bank recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting
date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

-An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible

outcomes;
- The time value of money; and
- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting

date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

iy  Modification of loans

The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers.
When this happens, the Bank assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the
original terms. The Bank does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

- If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash

flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay;
-Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based return that

substantially affects the risk profile of the loan;
- Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty;

- Significant change is interest rate;
- Change in the currency of the loan; and
-Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancement that significantly affect the credit risk

associated with the loan.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
2.3 Financial instruments (continued)
2.3.1 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
iy Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a
“new” asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purposes including for the purpose of determining whether a significant credit risk has occurred.

However, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit
impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the
debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also
recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of
the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying
amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate of

credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POCI financial assets.

iv)  Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the Bank transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (ii) the Bank neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Bank has not retained control.

The Bank enters into transactions where it retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities and transfers substantially
all of the risks and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that result in

derecognition of the Bank:

(i) Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i) Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and
(i) Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from assets without material delays.

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Bank under standard repurchase agreements and
securities lending and borrowings transactions are not derecognised because the Bank retains
substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for
derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies to certain securitisation transactions in which the
Bank retains a subordinated residual interest.

Financial liabilities
i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current period and prior period, financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, except for:
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Financial instruments (continued)

2.3.1 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

i)

Derecognition

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivatives, financial

liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking) and other financial liabiiities
designated as such at initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are presented partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in
the fair values of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability) and

partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability);

- Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not qualify for
derecognition, whereby a financial liability is recognised for the consideration received for the
transfer. In subsequent periods, the Bank recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;

and
Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Bank and its original lenders of debt instruments with substantially
different terms, as well as substantial modification of the terms of the existing financial liabilities, are
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the
currency that the instrument is denominated in, changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion
features attached to the instrument and change in covenants are also taken into consideration.

If the exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the
exchange of modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust
the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial

position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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2.4 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and
balances with Central Bank of Kenya, treasury bills and amounts due from other banks. Cash and
cash equivalents exclude the cash reserve requirement held with the Central Bank of Kenya.

2.5 Property and equipment

All property and equipment used by the Bank is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced partis capitalized . All other repair and maintenance costs are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold improvements 6 years, or over the period of the lease if less than 6
years
— Equipment and motor vehicles 4 - 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in ‘other operating expenses’ in profit or loss.

2.6 Intangible assets

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique software products controlled by the Bank are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

e management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

¢ there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

e it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the software product are available; and

¢ the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
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2.6 Intangible assets (continued)

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives, which does not exceed three years.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of the expected
useful lives. Software has a maximum expected useful life of 5 years.

2.7 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Bank operates a defined contribution pension scheme, which is funded by the Bank at 7.5%
and by employee at 7.5% based on annual basic salary for each staff.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed contributions to a
separate entity. The Bank has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

The Bank also makes contribution to the National Social Security Fund, a statutory defined
contribution pension scheme. The Bank’s obligation under the scheme is limited to the specific
contributions legislated from time to time.

(b) Other entitlements

The estimated monetary liability for employees’ accrued annual leave entitlement at the
reporting date is recognised as an expense accrual.

2.8 Swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts

Swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts are carried at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from appropriate pricing models.

Gains and losses on swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts are included in foreign
exchange income as they arise.

2.9 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs, legal claims and other provisions are recognised when the
Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2,9 Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same

class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.10 Income tax

(a) Current income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. The directors periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. They
establish provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised

or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the

balances on a net basis.
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2.11 Leases
(i) Leases under which the Bank is the lessee

On the commencement date of each lease (excluding leases with a term, on commencement, of
12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value) the Bank recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid on
that date. The lease payments include fixed payments, variable payments that depend on an
index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees, and the
exercise price of a purchase option if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise that option. The
lease payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Bank's incremental borrowing rate is used.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost comprising the initial measurement of the
lease liability, any lease payments made on or before the commencement date, any initial direct
costs incurred, and an estimate of the costs of restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required under the terms of the lease.

Subsequently the lease liability is measured at amortised cost, subject to remeasurement to
reflect any reassessment, lease modifications, or revised fixed lease payments.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of each asset to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. If ownership of the underlying asset is not
expected to pass to the Bank at the end of the lease term, the estimated useful life would not
exceed the lease term. -

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same asset are recognised in other comprehensive income. All
other decreases are charged to the profit and loss account. Annually, the difference between the
depreciation charge based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the profit
and loss account and depreciation based on the asset's original cost (excess depreciation) is
transferred from the revaluation surplus reserve to retained earnings.

For leases with a term, on commencement, of 12 months or less and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value, the total lease payments are recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

(i) Leases under which the Bank is the lessor

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset
to the lessee are classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Payments received under operating leases are recognised as income in the profit and loss
account on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Bank has not entered into any finance

leases.
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2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in equity. Any premium received over and above
the par value of the shares is classified as ‘share premium’ in equity.

2.13 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.14 Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided.

2.15 Acceptances and letters of credit

Acceptances and letters of credit are accounted for as off-balance sheet transactions and
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. The directors also need to exercise judgment in
applying the Bank’s accounting policies

All estimates and assumptions required in conformity with IFRS are best estimates undertaken
in accordance with the applicable standard. Estimates and judgements are evaluated on a
continuous basis and are based on experience and other factors, including expectations with
regard to future events.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, and major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment within the next financial year. Detailed information about each of these
estimates and judgements is included in the related notes together with information about the
basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements

30



UBA Kenya Bank Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes - Continued

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(a) Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant
assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of
customers defaulting and the resulting losses).

Several significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirement for
measuring ECL, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Choosing the appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL;

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL;

- Determining the relevant period of exposure to credit risk when measuring ECL for credit
cards and revolving credit facilities; and

- Determining the appropriate business models and assessing the “solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI)” requirements for financial assets

b) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are
not otherwise available are determined by using valuation techniques. In these cases, the fair
values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments or using
modeis. Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated based on
appropriate assumptions. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to
determine fair values, they are validated

and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of those that sourced them. All
models are certified before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect
actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable
data; however, areas such as credit risk (both own credit risk and counterparty risk), volatilities
and correlations require management to make estimates.

4 Financial risk management

The Bank has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

e Credit risk
e Liquidity risk
s  Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s
risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, Assets
and Liabilities (ALCO) and Credit Committees, which are responsible for developing and monitoring
the Bank’s risk management policies in their specified areas. All Board committees have both
executive and non-executive members and report regularly to the Board of Directors on their
activities. The Bank also has a fully-fledged risk management department that is responsible for
day today monitoring of risks across the Bank.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions, products and services offered. The Bank, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Bank’s risk management
policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Bank. The Audit Committee is assisted in these functions by
Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Bank’s customers, clients or
market counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual obligations to the Bank.

Credit risk arises mainly from corporate and retail loans and advances and loan commitments
arising from such lending activities, but can also arise from credit enhancement provided, financial
guarantees, letters of credit, endorsements and acceptances.

The Bank is also exposed to other credit risks arising from investments in debt securities and
other exposures arising from its trading activities (‘trading exposures’), including non-equity
trading portfolio assets, derivatives and settlement balances with market counterparties and

reverse repurchase loans.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments. Such risks
are monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to annual review. Limits on the level of credit
risk by product and industry sector are regularly reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted by sub-limits covering on
and off- balance sheet exposures.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing lending limits where
appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and corporate
and personal guarantees.

Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances that
the Bank will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third
parties, carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which
are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to draw
drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are
collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less

risk than a direct borrowing.
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4 Financial risk management {(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Credit related commitments

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the
form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend
credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments.
However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as most commitments
to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally

have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held 2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
Balances with Central Bank of Kenya (note 15) 586,016 328,213
Government securities at amortised cost (note 19) 10,580,940 7,939,075
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions (note 17) 3,341,549 3,325,204
Loans and advances to customers (note 18) 2,615,732 3,729,616
Other assets (note 23) 1,094,902 258,831
Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items (note
30):
- Acceptances and letters of credit - -
- Guarantees 544,395 820,592
- Other Financial Instruments 1,503,195 2,170,663
20,266,729 18,572,194
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
At 31 December 2020
Gross Amount:
Loans to individuals: 232,905 1,086 7,520 241,511
Loans to corporate entities 1,704,523 - 1,231,528 2,936,051
1,937,428 1,086 1,239,048 3,177,562
Loss allowance:
Loans to individuals (5,673) - (2,571) (8,244)
Loans to corporate entities (1,219) - (552,368) (5653,587)
(6,892) - (554,939) (561,831)
Carrying value 1,930,536 1,086 684,109 2,615,731
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Credit risk (continued)

Credit related commitments (continued)

At 31 December 2019
Gross Amount

Loans to individuals:
Loans to corporate entities

Loss allowance
Loans to individuals:
Loans to corporate entities

Total allowance for credit losses

Carrying value

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
117,835 38,400 19,003 175,238
2,417,458 772,582 515,063 3,705,093
2,535,293 810,982 534,056 3,880,331
(579) (1,439) (3,839) (5,856)
(11,868)  (28,942) (204,048) (244,859)
(12,447) (30,380) (207,887) (250,715)
2,522,846 780,602 326,169 3,629,616

The maximum exposure tabie represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure io the Bank
at 31 December 2020 and 2019, without taking account of any coliateral held or other credit
enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures set out above are based on
carrying amounts as reported in the statement of financial position.

Loans and advances to customers and off balance sheet items, other than to major corporates, are
secured by collateral in the form of charges over land and buildings and/ or plant and machinery or
corporate guarantees. All other financial assets have no collateral held on them.

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of credit
risk to the Bank resulting from both its loan and advances portfolio and debt securities based on the

following:

« the Bank exercises stringent controls over the granting of new loans
o 65% of the loans and advances portfolio are neither past due nor impaired
+ 100% of the investments in debt securities are government securities.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Loans and advances

2020 2019
Loans and advances are summarised as follows: Shs’000 Shs’000
Neither past due nor impaired (Stage 1) 1,937,428 2,535,293
Past due but not impaired (Stage 2) 1,086 810,982
Impaired (Stage 3) 1,239,048 534,056
Gross 3,177,562 3,880,331
Less provisions for loan Impairment 561,830 250,715
Net 2,615,731 3,629,616

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired can
be assessed based on the Central Bank of Kenya rating which the Bank has adopted:

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
Normal — neither past due nor impaired (Stage 1) 1,937,428 2,535,293

Loans and advances less than 90 days past due are not considered impaired, unless other
information is available to indicate the contrary. Past Due means any loan for which:

- principal or interest is due and unpaid for more than 30 days; or
- interest payments equal to more than 30 days interest have been refinanced, or rolled-over.

The gross amounts of loans and advances that were past due but not impaired were as follows:

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
Past due up to 90 days (Stage 2) 1,086 810,982
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Credit related commitments (continued)

Loans and advances individually impaired (Stage 3)

Of the total gross amount of impaired loans, the following amounts have been individually
assessed:

Loans Overdrafts
2020 2019 2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Individually assessed impaired loans
and advances 828,598 336,023 410,450 90,146

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that loans and
advances are impaired. Objective evidence that loans and advances are impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Bank about loss events such as significant
financial difficulty of the borrower, breach of contract, bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation
or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the Bank.

Gross Impairment Carrying FV of

Exposure Allowance Amount Collateral

Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Loans and Advances 3,177,562 561,830 2,615,732 5,639,555
Off Balance sheet items 544,334 14,183 530,151 455,164
Financial Commitment 120,240 - 120,240 421,450
Cash and Cash equivalents 15,043,474 6,938 15,036,536 -
18,885,610 582,951 18,302,659 6,516,169
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)
Credit related commitments (continued)
Write-offs

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Bank has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the
Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. The Bank may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off.
Recoveries resulting from the Bank’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains."

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that loans and
advances are impaired. Objective evidence that loans and advances are impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Bank about loss events such as significant
financial difficulty of the borrower, breach of contract, bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation
or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

(b) Concentration risk

Economic sector risk concentrations within the customer loan and deposit portfolios were as
follows:

Loans and advances 2020 2019

Shs’ 000 %  Shs’ 000 %
Energy and water 179,197 6% 235610 6%
Trade 689,583 22% 664,003 17%
Transport and communications 267,861 8% 110,024 3%
Manufacturing 1,015,050 32% 930,489 24%
Real estate 72,991 2% 83,082 2%
Agriculture 36,044 1% 659,683 17%
Personal household 242,826 8% 178,506 5%
Construction 447,290 14% 458,419 12%
Other 226,719 7% 560,515 14%

3,177,562 100% 3,880,331 100%

Customer deposits 2020 % 2019 %
Shs’000 Shs’000
Insurance companies 366,977 5% 291,467 4%
Private enterprise 6,350,659 81% 6,105,698 88%
Non-profit institutions & individuals 1,054,123 14% 535,768 8%

7771,759 100% 6,932,933 100%
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
{c) Liquidity risk

The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current
accounts, maturing deposits and calls on cash settled contingencies. The Bank does not maintain cash
resources to meet all of these needs as experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of
maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The matching and controlled mismatching
of the maturities of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the management of the Bank. By the very
nature of operations, it is unusual for Banks to ever completely match assets and liabilities. The Central
Bank of Kenya requires that the Bank maintain a cash reserve ratio and minimum liquidity ratios. In
addition, the Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls
and on the minimum level of inter-bank and other borrowing facilities that shouid be in place to cover
withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand. The treasury department monitors liquidity ratios on a daily
basis and this is closely reviewed by the Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO).

The table below presents the undiscounted cash flows payable by the Bank under financial assets &
liabilities by the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date.

At 31 December 2020 Upto 1 1-6 6-12 1-5 Over5
Month Months Months Years years Total

Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
Assets
Cash and Bank balances - - -
with Central Bank of Kenya 669,316 - 669,316
Government securities at
amortised cost 578,942 493,845 8,899,853 165,900 442,399 10,580,940
Deposits and balances due - -
from banking Institutions 1,683,772 - 1,657,777 3,341,549
Other assets 1,075,509 - - - - 1,112,972
Loans and advances to
customers 412,693 749,363 433,100 827,021 193,553 2,615,731
Total assets 4,420,232 1,243,208 11,008,800 992,921 655,345 18,320,508
Liabilities
Customer deposits 4,061,469 2,795,664 914,627 - - 7,771,760
Deposits and balances due
to banking institutions 3,895,967 3,135,043 1,101,409 - - 8,132,419
Lease Liability - - - - 26,583 26,583
Other liabilities 35,898 366,141 163,583 - - 555,622
Total liabilities 7,993,334 6,296,848 2,169,619 992,921 2,283,374 18,743,175
Net liquidity gap (3,573,102) (5,053,640) 8,839,181 992,921 628,762 1,834,124
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4 Financial risk management (continued)

{d) Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2019

Assets

Cash and Bank balances
with Central Bank of Kenya
Government securities at

amortised cost

Deposits and balances due
from banking Institutions

Other assets
Loans and advances to
customers

Total assets

Liabilities
Customer deposits

Deposits and balances due

to banking institutions
Lease Liability
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

Upto1 1-6 6-12 1-5 Over 5
Month Months Months Years years Total
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000  Shs’000 Shs’000
411,580 - - - - 411,580
- 1,692,087 5,651,129 161,080 429,547 7,933,843
2,109,484 - 1,215,721 - - 3,325,205
234,251 12,127 76,842 - 12,454 335,674
1,059,866 282,572 1,055,527 1,001,112 130,539 3,529,616
3,815,181 1,986,786 7,999,219 1,162,192 572,540 15,535,918
3,782,944 2,786,875 363,114 - - 6,932,933
1,552,795 4,095,554 1,018,415 - - 6,666,764
57,442 57,442
121,025 - 40,172 28,177 - 189,374
5,456,764 6,882,429 1,421,701 28177 57,442 13,846,513
(1,641,583) (4,895,643) 6,577,518 1,134,015 515,098 1,689,505

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of financial assets &
liabilities is fundamental to the management of the Bank. It is unusual for banks ever to be completely
matched since business transacted is often of uncertain terms and of different types. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses.

The maturities of financial liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing
liabilities as they mature, are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Bank and its exposure to

changes in interest rates and exchange rates.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, which include currency exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. Market risk arises
from open positions in interest rates and foreign currencies, both of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while optimising
the return on risk. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALCO). The Treasury department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by ALCO) and for the day to day implementation

of those policies.

(i) Currency risk

The Bank takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in
total for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are monitored regularly by management. In
addition, the Central Bank of Kenya monitors the foreign currency position on a regular basis. The Bank
had the following significant foreign currency positions (all amounts expressed in thousands of Kenya

Shillings):

At 31 December 2020
Assets

Cash and balances with
Central Bank of Kenya
Deposits and balances due
from banking institutions
Government securities at
amortised cost

Loans and advances to
customers

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Customer deposits
Deposits and balances due
to banking institutions
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Net balance sheet position
Net off-balance sheet

position

Overall net position

usD GBP EUR NGN Other Total
82,353 9,301 36,282 541,382 669,316
2,369,387 12,066 67,484 877,605 15,008 3,341,549
- - - 8,562,332 2,018,608 10,580,940
1,634,880 1 - - 980,850 2,615,731
2,844 2 3 - 1,171,172 1,174,021
4,089,463 21,369 103,769 9,439,937 4,727,019 18,381,558
2,714,686 20,455 70,693 129 4,965,797 7,771,759
6,927,030 - 645,089 560,299 8,132,418
81,482 - - 474,193 555,675
0
9,723,199 20,455 715,782 129 6,000,289 16,459,853
(5,633,736) 915 (612,013) 9,439,808  (1,273,270) 1,921,705
(237,884)  (14,902) 629,786  (1,880,196) (1,503,195)
(5,395,852) 15,816  (1,241,799) 11,320,004  (1,273,270) 3,424,900
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4 Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk {continued)

At 31 December 2019 uUsD GBP Euro NGN Other Total
Assets

Cash and balances with

Central Bank of Kenya 76,455 3,894 3,656 327,576 411,581
Deposits and balances due

from banking institutions 2,699,388 10,026 26,329 573,448 16,014 3,325,205
Government securities at

amortised cost - - - 5,816,036 2,117,808 7,933,844
Loans and advances to

customers 1,965,946 10 17 - 1,563,644 3,529,617
Other assets 18,370 4 5 - 317,294 335,673
Total assets 4,760,159 13,934 30,007 6,389,484 4,342,336 15,535,920
Liabilities

Customer deposits 1,324,090 8,401 30,591 65 5,569,785 6,932,933
Deposits and balances due

to banking institutions 6,505,367 - 11,370 - 150,027 6,666,764
Other liabilities 12,719 - - - 176,655 189,374
Shareholders’ funds 118,786 15 6,074 862,301 1,254,631 2,241,807
Total liabilities 7,960,9632 8,416 48,035 862,366 7,151,098 16,030,877
Net balance sheet position (3,200,803) 5518 (18,028) 5,527,118  (2,808,762) (494,960)
Net off-balance sheet

position _(2,195514) - 28,424 - 3,573 -
Overall net position (1,005,291) 5517 (46,453) 5,527,118  (2,808,762) (494,957)

The off-balance sheet position represents the difference between the notional amounts of foreign
currency derivative financial instruments and their fair values.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
At 31 December 2020, if the Shilling had strengthened/weakened by 1% against the major
currencies (USD, GBP, Euro and NGN) with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the

year would have been lower/ higher by Shs 46,982,000 (2019: Shs 44,809,000) as illustrated below:

Impact on shilling strengthening per currency (Shs ‘000)

uUsbD GBP Euro NGN Total
At 31 December 2020 (1%) (53,122) 158 (12,418) 113,200 46,982
At 31 December 2019 (1%) (10,053) 55 (465) 55,271 44,809

(i) Interest rate risk

The Bank is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing ievels of market interest rates on
its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but
may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Board of Directors
sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is
monitored daily.

At 31 December 2020 Upto1 1-3 312 1-12 Non-interest Total
Month months months years bearing

Cash and Bank balances with

Central Bank of Kenya - - - - 669,316 669,316

Government securities at

amortised cost 578,942 208,935 9,189,009 604,054 - 10,580,940

Deposits and balances due

from banking Institutions 1,631,788 - 1,657,777 - 51,983 3,341,549

Other assets - 1,112,972 1,112,972

Loans and advances to

customers 440,712 244 972 863,735 1,066,313 - 2615731
Deferred income tax - - - - 297,521 297,521
Property and equipment - - - - 61,238 61,238
Right-of-use assets 24,554 24,554
Intangible assets - - - - 2,857 2,857
Total assets 2,651,442 453,906 11,710,521 1,670,367 2,220,441 18,706,678
Liabilities -

Customer deposits 1,617,945 2,040,906 1,669,384 2,443,524 7,771,759
Deposits and balances due to

banking institutions 3,895,967 922,251 3,314,201 - - 8,132,418
Lease Liability - - - - 26,583 26,583
Other liabilities - - - - 555,623 555,623
Total liabilities 5513,912 2,963,157 4,983,585 - 3,025,730 16,486,384
Interest Sensitivity gap (2,862,470) (2,509,250) 6,726,936 1,670,367 (805,289) 2,220,294
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

Non-
At 31 December 2019 Upto1 1-3 312 Over1 interest Total
month months months year bearing

Assets
Cash and Bank balances

with Central Bank of Kenya - - - - 411,580 411,580
Government securities at

amortised cost - 919,612 6,423,604 590,628 - 7,933,844
Deposits and balances due

from banking institutions 1,290,457 - 1,215,721 - 819,027 3,325,204
Other assets - - - 335,673 335,673
Loans and advances to

customers 1,260,735 79,265 1,258,833 1,030,783 - 3,629,616
Deferred income tax - - - - 313,998 313,998
Right-of-use assets - - - - 55,276 55,276
Property and equipment - - - - 78,298 78,298
Intangible assets - - - - 4,829 4,829
Total assets 2,551,192 998,877 8,898,158 1,621,411 2,018,681 16,088,319
Liabilities
Customer deposits 1,416,175 2,253,602 896,388 2,366,769 6,932,933
Deposit and balances due to

banking institutions 1,552,795 - 5,113,969 - - 6,666,764
Lease Liability - - - - 57,442 57,442
Other liabilities - - - - 189,374 189,374
Total liabilities 2,968,970 2,253,602 6,010,357 - 2,613,585 13,846,514
Interest sensitivity gap (417,778) (1,254,725) 2,887,801 1,621,411 (594,904) 2,241,805
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4 Financial risk management {continued)
(e) Fair values and effective interest rates of financial assets and liabilities

The effective interest rates by major currency for monetary financial instruments at 31 December
2020 and 2019 were in the following ranges:

2020 2019
Shs‘000 Shs‘000
Assets
Government securities at amortised cost 10.57% (2019:8.77%) 10,580,940 7,939,075
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions 4.24% (2019: 3,341,549 2,506,178
5.68%)
Other deposits and balances with banking institutions 0% (2019: 819,027 819,027
0%)
Loans and advances to customers 9.02% (2019:12.25%) 2,615,011 3,629,616
Liabilities
Customer deposits 4.85% (2019: 6.58%) 7,771,759 6,932,933
Deposits and balances due to banking institutions 5.94%
(2019:5.82%) 8,132,418 6,666,764

The fair values of the Bank's financial assets and liabilities approximate the respective carrying
amounts, due to the generally short periods to contractual repricing or maturity dates as set out
above. Fair values are based on discounted cash flows using a discount rate based upon the
borrowing rate that directors expect would be available to the Bank at the reporting date.

(f)Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Fixed interest rate financial instruments expose the Bank to fair value interest rate risk. Variable
interest rate financial instruments expose the Bank to cashflow interest rate risk.

The Bank's fixed interest rate financial instruments are government securities, deposits with financial
institutions and borrowings. The Bank’s variable interest rate financial instruments are loans and
advances. The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk illustrates how changes in the fair value or
future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates

at the reporting date.

The Bank regularly monitors financial assets and liabilities. At 31 December 2020, a 200 basis points
increase in interest rates would have resulted in an increase in pre-tax profit of Shs 60,512,000
(2019: Shs 56,734,000 increase in pre-tax profit).
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
(g) Fair value of financial instruments
(i) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and
abilities not presented on the Bank’s statement of financial position at their fair value:

Carrying value Fair value
2020 2019 2020 2019
Shs 000 Shs 000 Shs 000 Shs 000
Financial assets
Deposits and balances due from
banking institutions 3,341,549 3,325,204 3,341,549 3,325,204
Loans and advances to customers 2,615,732 3,629,616 2,615,732 3,629,616
Government securities at amortised
cost 10,580,940 7,933,844 7,932,913 7,932,913

(a) Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to banks include inter-bank placements and items in the course of collection.

The carrying amount of floating rate placements and overnight deposits is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining

maturity.
(b) Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are net of charges for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and
advances represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be
received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

(c) Deposits from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing
deposits, is the amount repayable on demand.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
(g) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
(d) Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The estimated fair values of the off-balance sheet financial instruments are based on market prices
for similar facilities. When this information is not available, fair value is estimated using discounted

cash flow analysis.
(i) Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation
techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Bank's market assumptions. These two types
of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Bank considers
relevant and observable market prices in its valuations where possible.

The Bank had no assets carried at fair value at 31 December 2020 and 201.
(h) Capital management

The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the
statement of financial position, are:

« to comply with the capital requirements set by the Central Bank of Kenya;

« to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the
Central Bank of Kenya for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the Central
Bank of Kenya monthly.

The Central Bank of Kenya requires each Bank to:

(a) hold the minimum level of regulatory capital of Shs 1 billion;

(b) maintain a ratio of core regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets plus risk-weighted off-
balance sheet assets (the ‘Basel ratio’) at or above the required minimum of 10.5% (2019:
10.5%);

(c) maintain core capital of not less than 10.5% of total deposit liabilities; and

(d) maintain total capital of not less than 14.5% (2019:14.5%) of risk-weighted assets plus risk-
weighted off-balance sheet items.
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4 Financial risk management (continued)
(h) Capital management(continued)
The Bank’s total regulatory capital is divided into two tiers:

« Tier 1 capital (core capitai): share capital, share premium, plus accumulated losses.

o Tier 2 capital (supplementary capital): 25% (subject to prior approval) of revaluation reserves,
subordinated debt not exceeding 50% of Tier 1 capital and hybrid capital instruments.
Qualifying Tier 2 capital is limited to 100% of Tier 1 capital.

The risk weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of four risk weights classified
according to the nature of and reflecting an estimate of the credit risk associated with each asset
and counterparty. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some
adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.

The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the Bank for at
31 December:

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
Tier 1 capital 2,256,791 2,241,806
Tier 1 + Tier 2 capital 2,256,791 2,241,806
Risk-weighted assets
On-balance sheet 4,819,679 5,082,733
Off-balance sheet 845,034 2,334,781
Market and operational 1,761,279 1,419,849
Total risk-weighted assets 7,425,992 8,837,363
Basel ratio
Tier 1 (CBK minimum — 10.5% [2019: 10.5%]) 30.40% 25.40%
Tier 1 + Tier 2 (CBK minimum —-14.5% [2019: 14.5%)]) 30.40% 25.40%
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5

Interest income

Loans and advances:

To banks

To customers

Government securities

Fees and commission on loans

Interest expense

Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers

Fee and commission income

Credit related fees and commissions
Other fees

Fees and commission expenses

Net fee and commission income

Net trading and revaluation income

Foreign exchange trading income
Foreign currency revaluation gain

Operating income

Profit on disposal of property and equipment

Other income

48

Restated

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
141,599 164,573
266,508 345,741
1,121,843 929,749
13,072 84,128
1,543,023 1,524,191
483,053 445138
377,103 354,114
860,157 799,252
6,719 11,658
45,453 41,238
52,172 52,896
(56,580) (37,800)
(4,408) 15,096
247,323 76,704
67,503 60,2963
314,826 137,667
1,510 370
10,484 2,070
11,994 2,440
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10

11

12

13

Credit impairment charge

Loans and advances
Investment securities
Off balance sheet items

Employee benefits
Wages and salaries

Social security costs
Defined contribution scheme

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 20)

Amortization of intangible assets (Note 21)

Other operating expenses

Occupancy, furniture and equipment
Travel and entertainment

IT, communication and software costs
Consulting expenses

Reuters and swift expenses
Licenses and subscriptions

Security expenses

Auditor's remuneration

Marketing and public relations
Repairs & Maintenance

Motor vehicle costs

Bank charges

Deposit protection fund

Group recharges

Other expenses
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2020 2019
Shs ‘000 Shs ‘000
311,116 190,104
4,245 110
(16,531) (19,158)
298,830 171,056
319,724 346,784
205 225
11,382 11,722
331,311 358,731
28,163 30,523
1,963 4,954
30,126 35,477
16,759 17,048
7,687 11,420
9,364 14,113
16,830 15,156
16,256 7,218
19,674 7,109
5,526 5,605
5,571 6,303
21,201 28,445
5,566 8,934
5,105 7,757
4,932 7,357
8,076 6,409
37,296 40,172
74,333 13,191
254,176 196,237
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14

15

Income tax expense

Current income tax
Deferred income tax
Under provision of deferred tax in prior years

Income tax expense

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs ‘000
16,478 38,022

= (32)

16,478 37,990

The tax on the Bank's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at the tax rate of 25% (2019: 30%)
Effect of:

Expenses not deductible

over provision of deferred tax in prior years

Income tax expense

Cash and balances with the Central Bank of Kenya

Cash in hand

Balances with the Central Bank of Kenya other than mandatory
reserve deposits

Mobile money balances

Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 16)

Mandatory reserve deposits with the Central Bank of Kenya

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
55,972 105,578
13,993 31,673
2,485 6,349

- (32)

16,478 37,990
119,795 83,367
344,802 157,522
36,495 -
501,092 240,889
204,719 170,691
705,811 411,580

Mandatory reserve deposits are not available for use in the Bank's day-to-day operations.
Cash-in-hand and balances with the Central Bank of Kenya and mandatory reserve deposits

are non-interest-bearing.
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16 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivaients include:

2020 2019

Shs’000 Shs’000

Cash and balances with the Central Bank of Kenya (Note 15) 501,092 240,889
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions (Note 17) 3,341,549 3,325,204

3,842,641 3,566,093

17 Deposits and balances due from banking institutions

Placements with other banks 2,250,988 2,506,178
Other deposits and balances other banks 1,090,561 819,027
included in cash and cash equivalents 3,341,549 3,325,204

18 Loans and advances to customers

Individual (retail customers):

- Overdrafts 9,626 362

- Term loans 231,886 175,552
241,512 175,914

Corporate entities:

- Large corporate customers 2,935,863 3,698,463

- SMEs 187 5,953

2,936,050 3,704,416

Gross loans and advances to customers 3,177,562 3,880,331
Less provisions for loan Impairment (561,830) (250,715)
Net loans and advances to customers 2,615,732 3,629,616
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18 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

i) Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
Gross Carrying amounts as at 1
January 2020 2,535,302 810,982 534,046 3,880,331
Changes in the gross carrying amount (791,997) (479,483) 47,436 (1,224,044)
Net movement of loans between stages (327,470) (330,413) 657,883 -
New financial assets originated or
purchased 1,554,984 - 3,539 1,558,622
Financial assets that have been
derecognised (1,033,391) - (3,856) (1,037,247)
Gross carrying amount as at 31
December 2020 1,937,428 1,086 1,239,048 3,177,562
Loans to individuals: 232,905 1,086 7,520 241,511
Loans to corporate entities 1,704,523 - 1,231,528 2,936,051
1,937,428 1,086 1,239,048 3,177,562

iii) Loss allowance — Loans and advances to customers

At 1 January 2020 12,447 30,380 207,888 250,715
Net transfer of impairment between stages - (30,380) 30,380 -
New financial assets originated/purchased
or derecognised

Increase/ (decrease)/ in provisions (5,555) - 316,671 311,116
At 31 December 2020 6,892 - 554,939 561,831
Loans to individuals: (5,673) - (2,571) (8,244)
Loans to corporate entities (1,219) - (552,368) (653,687)
Total loss allowance (6,892) - (554,939) (561,831)
19 Government securities at amortised cost Restated
2020 2019

Shs’000 Shs’000

Government securities at amortised cost 10,585,185 7,914,568
Loss allowance (Note 10) (4,245) (5,231)
10,580,940 7,909,337
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20 Property and equipment

Fixtures,
Leasehold Computer Motor fittings and Work in
improvements equipment vehicles equipment progress Total
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
Year ended 31 December 2019
Cost 160,328 48,019 78,930 98,354 16,483 402,114
At start of year - 490 - 16,695 - 17,185
Additions - - - (6,408) - (6,408)
At end of year
160,328 49,055 78,930 122,252 2036 412,601
Depreciation
At start of year (159,504) (36,408) (48,271) (65,030) - (309,214)
Depreciation charge (184) (3,562) (11,650) (15,127) - (30,523)
Adjustment - - - 5,433 - 5,433
At end of year (159,688) (39,970) (59,921) (74,724) - (334,303)
Net book value 640 9,085 19,009 47,528 2,036 78,298
Year ended 31 December 2020
Cost
At start of year 160,328 49,055 78,930 122,252 2,036 412,601
Additions - 1,095 - 11,340 - 12,435
Disposals - (7,450)  (4,187) (2,498) - (14,135)
Transfers - 273 - 1,763 (2,036) -
At end of year 160,328 42,973 74,743 132,857 - 410,900
Depreciation
At start of year (159,688) (39,970) (59,921) (74,724) - (334,303)
Depreciation charge (245) (3,339)  (8,393) (16,187) - (28,164)
Disposals - 7,442 4,187 1,175 - 12,804
At end of year (159,933) (35,867) (64,127) (89,736) - (349,663)
395 7,106 10,616 43,121 - 61,238

Net book value
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21

22

23

Intangible assets

Net book value

At start of year

Disposal

Amortisation charge for the year
Amortization on disposal

At end of year

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Right of use Asset

At start year
Depreciation

At end of year

Other assets

Prepayments

Uncleared effects

Deposits recoverable

Receivable from group companies
Other

54

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
4,829 9,784
(561) -
(1,963) (4,954)
552 -
2,857 4,829
45,493 46,054
(42,636) (41,225)
2,857 4,829
55,276 85,998
(30,722) (30,722)
24,554 55,276
18,070 76,842

- 6,015

19,393 12,454

- 12,127
1,075,509 228,236
1,112,972 335,674
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24 Deferred income tax

At start of year

Charge to the statement of comprehensive income (Note 14)

Under-provision in prior year

At end of year

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
313,998 351,988
(16,478) (38,022)

- 32
297,521 313,998

The deferred income tax asset and deferred income tax expense in the statement of
comprehensive income and equity are attributable to the following items:

Deferred income tax assets
Provisions

Unrealised exchange losses
Lease liability

Tax losses

Deferred income tax liability
PPE - historical cost basis
Right of use

Deferred income tax asset

Deferred income tax assets
Provisions

Unrealised exchange losses
Lease liability

Tax losses

Deferred income tax liability
PPE - historical cost basis
Right of use

Deferred income tax asset

Charged/
1 January (Credited) to 31 December
2020 SCi 2020
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
115,984 84,757 200,741
(18,289) (5,790) (24,079)
17,233 (9,258) 7,975
206,720 (97,841) 108,879
8,933 2,437 11,370
(16,583) 9,217 (7,366)
313,998 (16,478) 297,520

Charged/ Charged/
1 January (Credited) (Credited) to 31 December
2019 to Equity SCi 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
38,570 (17,503) 94,917 115,984
235 - (18,524) (18,289)
- - 17,233 17,233
306,089 - (99,369) 206,720
7,094 - 1,839 8,933
- - (16,583) (16,583)
351,988 (17,503) (20,487) - 313,998
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25 Deposits and balances due to banking institutions

Deposits from banks

26 Deposits from customers

Current/settlement accounts
Savings and transaction accounts
Fixed deposit accounts

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
8,132,418 6,666,764
2,236,974 2,284,998
78,611 81,770
5,456,174 4,566,164
7,771,759 6,932,933

Included in the fixed deposit balances above is cash collateral of Shs 204,000,000 (2019: Shs

593,621,918).
27 Lease Liability
At start of year

Finance cost
Lease payment

At end of year

28 Other liabilities

Statutory deduction

Banker cheques

Loss allowance on off balance sheet items
Other
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2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
57,442 85,998
4,141 6,847
(35,000) (35,403)
26,583 57,442
13,813 15,711
3,652 3,589
16,877 47,334
521,279 127,721
555,621 194,355
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29 Share capital Number Ordinary Share
of shares shares premium
Shs’000 Shs’000

Year ended 31 December 2019
At start of year 1,261,713 1,261,713 2,384,754
Atend of year 1,261,713 1,261,713 2,384,754

Year ended December 2020
At start of year 1,261,713 1,261,713 2,384,754

At end of year 1,261,713 1,261,713 2,384,754

The total authorised, issued and fully paid number of ordinary shares is 1,261,713 with a par
value of Shs 1,000 per share. Any premium received over and above the par value of the shares

is classified as ‘share premium’ in equity.
30 Related parties

The immediate and ultimate parent company is United Bank for Africa Plc, incorporated in
Nigeria. The Bank is related to other companies which are related through common

shareholding or common directorships.
Advances to customers which include loans to directors, loans to companies connected to

directors or their families and loans to employees are as follows:

i) Loans and advances to related parties

2020 2019

Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year 58,016 167,401
Advances during the year 18,426 22,193
Advances to former related parties (0) (77,703)
Repayments during the year (17,862) (53,875)
At end of year 58,580 58,016

Interest income earned on advances to directors or entities
controlied by directors - -
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30 Related parties

ii) Deposits from related parties

Deposits from directors or entities controlled by directors

Interest expense paid on deposits by directors or entities
connected to directors

iii) Key management compensation

Salaries and other benefits

iv) Directors’ remuneration

Fees
Other emoluments

v) Balances with group companies
Due from:

UBA Pic,Lagos
UBA New York
UBA Uganda

UBA Tanzania
UBA Cameroon
UBA Burkina Faso
UBA Mali

UBA Capital Europe
UBA Mozambique
UBA Zambia

UBA DRC

Interest income earned on the above
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2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
33,237 11,675
136,520 136,490
17,294 10,900
17,294 10,900
980,105 592,909
2,387 2,217

82 5

6,480 3,080
3,072 960
1,171 1,570
3,081 1,017
2,183,800 1,018,647
- 243,928

- 965,395

- 432,625
3,180,178 3,262,353
21,838 7,448
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30 Related parties (continued)

v) Balances with group companies (continued)

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000

Due to:
UBA Pic,Lagos 1,091,900 5,113,969
UBA New York 545,950 -
UBA Uganda 327,570 274,418
UBA Tanzania 109,190 315,655
UBA DRC 1,255,685 406,839
UBA Céte d'lvoire 873,520 -
UBA Sierra Leone 272,975 -
UBA Zambia 218,380 -
Other group companies 4695170 6,110,881
Interest expense incurred on the above 28,420 46,187

vi) Value of services provided

Group companies provide support services from time to time for which they charge at costs
incurred at the country of origin. The value of the services provided are debited to the income

statement and are included in total expenditure of the Bank.

31 Off balance sheet financial instruments, contingent liabilities and commitments

In common with other banks, the Bank conducts business involving acceptances, guarantees,
performance bonds and indemnities. The majority of these facilities are offset by corresponding
obligations of third parties. In addition, there are other off-balance sheet financial instruments
including forward contracts for the purchase and sale of foreign currencies, whose nominal

amounts are not reflected in the balance sheet.

2020 2019
Contingent liabilities Shs’000 Shs’000
Guarantee and performance bonds 544,334 820,592
Other financial instruments
QOutright Currency 558,100 3,173,820
Spot Currency 2,611,770 224,064
Swap Currency (1,666,675) (1,226,940)
2,047,529 2,991,255
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31 Off balance sheet financial instruments, contingent liabilities and commitments

32

(continued)

Nature of contingent liabilities

Guarantees are generally written by a Bank to support performance by a customer to third parties.
The Bank will only be required to meet these obligations in the event of the customer’s default.

Other financial instruments are under the management of the treasury department. They involve
various forms of agreements to deat FX at future dates with counterparties.

Nature of commitments

Commitments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer in future subject to certain conditions.

Such commitments are normally made for a fixed period.

Foreign exchange forward contracts are agreements to buy or sell a specified quantity of foreign

currency, usually on a specified future date at an agreed rate.

Cash generated from operations

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Interest received

Interest paid

Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 20)
Depreciation of right of use asset (Note 22)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 21)
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Finance cost

Impairment loss recognised

Recoveries from loans previously written off

Profit before working capital changes
Movements in;

Mandatory reserve deposits with the Central Bank of Kenya

{Note 16)

Government securities

Loans and advances to customers

Customer deposits

Other assets

Deposits and balances due to banking institutions

Other liabilities

Cash generated from operations
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Restated

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
55,972 81,072
(898,055) (202,138)
637,978 129,340
28,163 30,523
30,722 -
1,963 4,954

188 (370)

4,141 (6,847)
298,830 171,056
28 2,033
159,930 209,623
(34,028) (10,935)
(2,671,603) (40,968)
1,013,884 (282,039)
838,826 893,883
(777,298) (99,508)
1,465,654 (257,731)
366,247 (4,981)
201,682 197,721
361,612 407,344
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33  Prior period adjustment
In 2020, management discovered a computational error of Shs 24,507,000 in calculating interest
income on investment in government securities. The error resulted in an overstatement of

income recognised for the 2019 and a corresponding overstatement of government securities.

The financial statements have been restated to correct the error. Profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 was reduced by Shs 24,507,000 from Shs 67,588,000 previously reported to

Shs 43,082,000.
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